Before the

Administrative Hearing Commission

State of Missouri

DIRECTOR OF DEPARTMENT OF
)

PUBLIC SAFETY,
)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No. 02-1576 PO




)

BRIAN C. McGARR,

)




)



Respondent.
)

DECISION


Brian C. McGarr’s peace officer certificate is subject to discipline for conduct related to a scheme to rob drug dealers.  

Procedure


On October 16, 2002, the Director of Public Safety (Director) filed a complaint.  On December 26, 2002, the Director filed a motion for summary determination.  Pursuant to section 536.073.3, RSMo 2000, 
 our Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.440(3)(B) provides that we may decide this case without a hearing if any party establishes facts that no party disputes and entitle any party to a favorable decision.  ITT Commercial Fin. Corp. v. Mid-Am. Marine Supply Corp., 854 S.W.2d 371, 380-82 (Mo. banc 1993).  We gave McGarr until January 20, 2003, to respond to 

the motion, but he did not respond.  Therefore, the following facts, established by certified records attached to the motion, are undisputed.    

Findings of Fact

1. Since March 22, 1996, McGarr has held a Class A peace officer certificate that is, and was at all relevant times, current and active.  

2. In March 2002, McGarr conspired to rob two women whom he believed to be drug traffickers.  The women were undercover law enforcement officers acting as part of an investigation focusing on McGarr.  The robbery did not occur because the operation ended for the women’s protection.  

3. On April 25, 2002, based on the conduct in Finding 2, McGarr pled guilty to conspiracy to interfere with commerce by robbery in violation of 18 USC section 1951(a).  United States v. McGarr, No. 02-00107-01-CR-W-HFS (W.D. Mo.).  On September 6, 2002, the Court imposed a sentence including five years’ imprisonment.  

Conclusions of Law

We have jurisdiction to hear the Director’s complaint.  Section 590.080.2.  The Director has the burden of proving that McGarr has committed conduct for which the law allows discipline.  Missouri Real Estate Comm'n v. Berger, 764 S.W.2d 706, 711 (Mo. App., E.D. 1989).  

The Director cites section 590.080.1, which allows discipline if McGarr:

(2) Has committed any criminal offense, whether or not a criminal charge has been filed; 

(3) Has committed any act while on active duty or under color of law that involves moral turpitude or a reckless disregard for the safety of the public or any person[.]

Moral turpitude is: 

an act of baseness, vileness, or depravity in the private and social duties which a man owes to his fellowman or to society in general, contrary to the accepted and customary rule of right and duty between man and man; everything “done contrary to justice, honesty, modesty, and good morals.”  

In re Frick, 694 S.W.2d 473, 479 (Mo. banc 1985) (quoting In re Wallace, 19 S.W.2d 625 (Mo. banc 1929)).  

McGarr’s guilty plea is an admission that he committed the criminal offense with which he was charged.  Nichols v. Blake, 418 S.W.2d 188, 190 (Mo. 1967).  That offense is described in 18 USC section 1951, which provided:

(a) Whoever in any way or degree obstructs, delays, or affects commerce or the movement of any article or commodity in commerce, by robbery or extortion or attempts or conspires so to do, or commits or threatens physical violence to any person or property in furtherance of a plan or purpose to do anything in violation of this section shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than twenty years, or both.

(b) As used in this section –


(1) The term “robbery” means the unlawful taking or obtaining of personal property from the person or in the presence of another, against his will, by means of actual or threatened force, or violence, or fear of injury, immediate or future, to his person or property, or property in his custody or possession, or the person or property of a relative or member of his family or of anyone in his company at the time of the taking or obtaining.

Such conduct is contrary to social duties.  Therefore, we conclude that McGarr committed a criminal offense involving moral turpitude.  

Summary


McGarr is subject to discipline under section 590.080.1(2) and (3).  We cancel the hearing.


SO ORDERED on January 24, 2003.



________________________________



KAREN A. WINN



Commissioner

�Statutory references are to the 2001 Supplement to the Revised Statutes of Missouri unless otherwise noted.
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